
  

 

  
 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL  

WEDNESDAY, JULY 30, 2025 AT 7:00 PM  

Council Chambers 
Langley City Hall 

(In-Person Meeting) 
 

A G E N D A 

 

1) AGENDA 
 
Adoption of the July 30, 2025 agenda. 
 
 

2) MINUTES 
 

Adoption of minutes from the April 16, 2025 meeting. 
 

 
3) DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION DP 10-24 

 
20622 Langley Bypass. 

 
 

4) NEXT MEETING 
 
September – date to be confirmed. 
 
 

5) ADJOURNMENT 



 

Document Number: 201679 
201679 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

  
 

MINUTES OF THE  
ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL  

 
HELD IN CKF ROOM,  
LANGLEY CITY HALL 

 
WEDNESDAY, APRIL 16, 2025 

AT 7:00 PM  

 
Present: Councillor Paul Albrecht (Chair) 

Councillor Mike Solyom (Co-Chair)  
Mayor Nathan Pachal 
Himanshu Chopra 
Melissa Coderre 
Jaswinder Gabri 
Matt Hassett  
Tracey Macatangay  
Tana McNicol 
Samantha Stroman 
 

Absent:
  

Leslie Koole 
Ritti Suvilai 
 

Staff: C. Johannsen, Director of Development Services 
A. Metalnikov, Planner 
S. Salh, Executive Assistant  
 

 

 
Chair Albrecht began by acknowledging that the land on which we gather is on the 
traditional unceded territory of the Katzie, Kwantlen, Matsqui and Semiahmoo First 
Nations. 

 
1) AGENDA 
 

Adoption of the April 16, 2025 agenda 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 
THAT the April 16, 2025 agenda be adopted as circulated.  
 
CARRIED   



ADP Minutes – April 16, 2025 

 

 

 2 

2) MINUTES 
 

Adoption of minutes from the March 12, 2025 meeting 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
 
THAT the minutes of the March 12, 2025 Advisory Design Panel meeting be 
approved as circulated.  
 
CARRIED 

 
3) DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION DP 03-24  

20297 Fraser Highway. 
 

Mr. Johannsen introduced the application and advised that it is in a transit-
oriented area and does not require rezoning, only a building permit. 
 
Mr. Metalnikov spoke to the staff report regarding the application context, 
indicating that it is a 6-storey mixed-use building with apartments and commercial 
floor area.  

  
The Applicant team entered the meeting: 
 

 Travis Tournier, Owner’s Representative, Kerr Properties Ltd. 
 Jim Vasto, Principal, Gravity Architecture 
 Richard Anderson, Project Architect, Gravity Architecture 

Clark Kavolinas, Landscape Architect, C Kavolinas & Associates Inc. 
 
 Mr. Vasto provided a PowerPoint presentation on the proposed development, 

providing information on the following: 

• Noting the importance of the site and understanding the desire to revitalize 
the downtown core with the proximity to the new sky train station; 

• The history of the property, with the approach needing to be different than 
a cookie cutter property; 

• The proposed design including 78 rental units, and 7000 square feet for 
commercial retail space with parking below.   
 

 Mr. Anderson provided the following information:   

• Site context and layout;  

• Exterior design of the building;  

• Interior layout;  

• Project details. 
 
The applicant team responded to questions from Panel members and received 
feedback from Panel members regarding the form and character of building: 

• Really like the project with the wood panels in the random spots; 

• Need clarity on the amenity space;  

• Colour and character needed on the white wall facing Fraser Highway;  

• The height of the roofline;    



ADP Minutes – April 16, 2025 

 

 

 3 

• Would prefer more greenery on the ground level and vertical surfaces;  

• Amending the ground floor commercial retail units so they can use the 
street front for outdoor seating; 

• Have large stairs at the front of the building where people can sit or can be 
used for greenery;  

• More is needed in the front corner of the building, such as a public art 
piece, lighting detail, water feature, trees, or Indigenous art;  

• The need for privacy screening between residents’ balconies;  

• Use of rooftop treatment to reduce heat island effect; provide 
environmentally friendly surface treatment; 

• Suggestion to name the building Gabby’s or add Gabby’s down one side 
of the exterior walls;   

• Extra sound treatment with the washrooms in the amenity/active areas 
due the condos on either side of them; 

• Pre-ducting for future expansion of EV parking;  

• Use Canada post hardware in the mailroom.  
 

The applicant team left the meeting. 
 
There was further discussion regarding the following: 

• Update landscape plans with additional programming and furnishing 
details considering potential for outdoor displays and seating on the 
business frontages;  

• Create a roll up wall for the commercial retail units; or set the curtain wall 
a little further back;  

• Need to be strategic when planting trees – need protection around them or 
plant them against the building;  

• An opportunity to test out different artistic interventions by projecting art 
onto that exterior wall;   

• Green elements such as floating trellis or vines;   

• Use LED strip lighting;  

• Suggestion was not to have a water feature due to water restrictions and 
high maintenance;  

• Landscaping in the back lane to add interest to the back of the building 
and to keep graffiti and loitering to a minimum; 

• Stairs in front of the building, like areas in Vancouver and Bentall complex; 

• Keep the bike racks simple;  

• Bike parking underground or in the units;  

• Sound attenuation in the amenity room;  

• Operable windows in all the bedrooms. 
 
It was MOVED and SECONDED 
THAT: 
 
The ADP received the staff report dated April 11, 2025 for information; and 
 
The ADP recommends the applicant give further consideration to the following 
prior to the application proceeding to Council: 





 

  

 

 
 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 
REPORT 

 
To: Advisory Design Panel   
    
Subject: Development Permit Application 

DP 10-24 
(20622 Langley Bypass) 

  

    
From: Ji Woo Lee, BSc., MCRP 

Planning Assistant 
File #: 6630.00 

  Bylaw #:  
Date: July 11, 2025  Doc #:  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

THAT this report be received for information. 
 
 
PROPOSAL 
 

Development Permit Application for a 1,510.6 m2 expansion to an existing 
automotive dealership. 

 
CITY BYLAWS & POLICIES: 
 

Applying to the subject properties: 
a. Official Community Plan (OCP): Service Commercial; and 
b. Zoning: C2 Service Commercial  

 
The proposed development: 

a. Is consistent with the OCP (Service Commercial); and 
b. Is consistent with the property’s existing C2 zoning; no rezoning required. 

 
COMMENTS/ANALYSIS: 
 
Background Information: 

Applicant: Christopher Bozyk Architects Ltd. 
Civic Address: 20622 Langley Bypass 



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 2 
 

 

 
Discussion: 

 
1. Context 

 
The applicant is proposing a 1,510.6 m2 addition to the existing automotive 
dealership. This site is designated as Service Commercial in the City’s Official 
Community Plan, which aligns with the property’s existing C2 Service 
Commercial zoning, which allows for automotive sales and services. 
 
The property is located within an established auto-oriented commercial area, 
surrounded by large parcels that accommodate various buildings housing service 
commercial uses and facilities. 
 
The property has a single access along a frontage road to the north, which is 
connected to the Langley Bypass, a Provincial highway that connects the site to 
major arterial roads, including Glover Road to the east and 200 Street to the west. 
To the west and east, the property is bounded by a light industrial complex, a 
shopping centre and bounded by a railway on the south. 
 
  

Legal Description: Lot 6 Except: Firstly: Part On Plan 27727; 
Secondly: Part On Plan 28361; 
Thirdly: Parcel "B" (Right Of Way Plan 
41136); Fourthly: Part Highway 
Statutory Right Of Way Plan 29755 Fifthly: 
Part In Plan BCP6882 
District Lot 308 Group 2 New Westminster 
District Plan 2020 

Site Area: 12,708 m2 (136,788 ft2) 
Gross Floor Area: 1,510.6 m2 (16,260 ft2) proposed addition 

4,534.7 m2 (48,811 ft2) proposed new total 
Floor Area Ratio: 0.36 
Lot Coverage: 36% 
Total Parking Required: 39 spaces (including 2 h/c spaces) 
Parking Provided: 159 spaces (including 4 h/c spaces) 
OCP Designation: Service Commercial 
Zoning: C2 Service Commercial 
Development Cost Charges: $435,929.61 (City - $235,119.07,  

GVS&DD - $87,966.40, GVWD -  
$86,177.80, MV Parks – $3,902.39,  
TransLink - $22,763.95) 

Community Amenity 
Contributions (CACs):         

N/A 



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 3 
 

 

 
Site context 

 
2. Design 

 
The applicant is proposing a 1,510.6m2 addition to the existing building to expand 
the showroom, detail bays, and shop areas along the west, south, and east sides 
of the building. A second access from the frontage road is proposed to provide a 
more direct route to the front entrance and improve access for emergency 
vehicles. Because the subject site and its access are located off a Provincial 
highway, the application is being reviewed by the Ministry of Transportation and 
Transit. 
 
The exterior building envelope is clad in white aluminum composite panels along 
the north elevation and the part of east elevation wrapping the show room area. 
The remaining portions of the east, south, and west elevations consist of tilt-up 
concrete walls and are painted in grey and white to match aluminum panels. The 
current north elevation which features a curved, two storey glazed lobby is 
reconfigured into a straight, continuous glazed façade as part of the expansion. 
The canopies over the main entrance and service reception are finished with red 
aluminum composite panels. A small entrance and vehicle display plaza is 
proposed between the new lobby and the proposed second access on the north 
side, to be paved and integrated into the site design. 

Subject 
Site 



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 4 
 

 

 
Additional improvements include a new recycling waste storage enclosure and 
bicycle storage spaces along the south property line. As part of this expansion, 
landscaping beds are expanded and added and incorporated throughout the site. 
New hedges and trees are added along and within the property’s perimeter. Five 
existing trees are proposed to be retained on site, and seven new trees in a mix 
of deciduous and coniferous species are proposed. 

 
The concrete slab elevation of the existing structure is lower than the current 
Flood Construction Level elevation in the Floodplain Elevation Bylaw by 
approximately 700 mm and the applicant is seeking to construct the floor slab of 
the new addition at the same elevation as the existing slab.  
 
The City is supportive of an exemption to the Floodplain Elevation Bylaw as we 
have received and accepted a report from a professional engineer certifying that 
the land may be safely used for the purpose intended, and that the Owner shall 
grant to the City a restrictive covenant under Section 219 of the Land Title Act 
with respect to the property. 
 

3. Sustainability 
 

The proposal incorporates several sustainable development features, including: 
• Using construction techniques that minimize site disturbance and protect 

air quality; 
• Using exterior lighting systems meeting ground-level and dark skies light 

pollution reduction principles; 
• Providing enhanced recycling facilities to enhance the ability to recycle the 

full range of recyclable materials; 
• Incorporating a construction recycling plan; 
• Using drought-tolerant and non-water dependent planting materials; 
• Using water-conserving toilets; 
• Providing four parking stalls (two Level 2, two Level 3) in the exterior 

parking area with electric vehicle chargers, with an additional three stalls 
roughed in for future Level 3 charger installation. 
 

4. CPTED 
 

The applicant’s proposal benefited from a comprehensive Crime Prevention 
Through Environmental Design (CPTED) review by a qualified consultant whose 
recommendations were incorporated into the plans. 

 
  



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 5 
 

 

5. Variances 
 

The applicant has requested a variance from the Zoning Bylaw to reduce the 
required number of loading spaces from 3 to 1. The existing building is served by 
a single loading zone and the applicant has confirmed it would continue to 
adequately serve the dealership’s operations with the proposed addition 
completed. Under the draft new Zoning Bylaw, the expanded building would be 
required to have one loading space. 
 

Staff support this proposed variance based on the provisions in the draft new 
Zoning Bylaw and discussions with the applicant confirming no significant 
increase in loading use is expected. 

 
6. Summary 

 
The proposed development is consistent with the property’s zoning and OCP 
designation and would further reinforce the Langley Bypass’ role as a prominent 
regional commercial destination. 

 
ENGINEERING REQUIREMENTS 
 

1. The applicant has submitted a report by a professional engineer certifying 
that the land may be safely used for the purpose intended and has been 
accepted by the City. 

2. Registration of a restrictive covenant against the title of the property under 
section 219 of the Land Title Act. 

3. Updated fire flow and fire hydrant(s) coverage analysis to support the 
expansion. 

4. Updated stormwater management plan as required per City Design Criteria 
Manual (DCM). 

5. Service connection upgrade as required per City bylaws and DCM. 
 

FIRE DEPARTMENT COMMENTS 
 

Fire department access for the whole project was reviewed to ensure adequate 
access was in place for both apparatus and firefighters. A construction fire safety 
plan shall be completed. The department is requesting the current FDC be 
replaced with 4” storz connection to be located on a remote pedestal in front of 
the building, near the northeast corner, exact location to be determined at a later 
date.  

 
  



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 6 
 

 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL 
 

In accordance with Development Application Procedures Bylaw No. 3270, the 
subject Development Permit application will be reviewed by the Advisory Design 
Panel (ADP) at the July 30, 2025 meeting. 

 
According to the Council-approved ADP Terms of Reference, the ADP is to 
provide form and character and urban design-related advice and 
recommendations for Council’s consideration. ADP recommendations will be 
presented to Council through the ADP meeting minutes and, if applicable, 
through an additional City staff report, prior to Council consideration of the 
proposed Development Permit Applications.   

 
A copy of the ADP minutes will be presented to Langley City Council at a future 
Regular Council meeting. 

 
BUDGET IMPLICATIONS: 

 
In accordance with Bylaw No. 3256, the proposed development would contribute 
$235,119.07 to City Development Cost Charge accounts. 

 
 
Prepared by:  
  
 
 
_______________________   
Ji Woo Lee, BSc., MCRP 
Planning Assistant  
 
 
Concurrence:     Concurrence: 
        

        
__________________________   _______________________  
Roy M. Beddow, RPP, MCIP   Carl Johannsen, RPP, MCIP 
Deputy Director of Development Services Director of Development Services  
 
 
  



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 7 
 

 

Concurrence:     Concurrence: 
 

  
__________________________   __________________________ 
David Pollock, P.Eng.    Scott Kennedy 
Director of Engineering, Parks,   Fire Chief 
& Environment   
 
Attachments 
  



To: Advisory Design Panel  
Date: July 11, 2025 
Subject: Development Permit Application DP 10-24 
Page 8 
 

 

 
 DEVELOPMENT PERMIT APPLICATION DP 10-24 

 
Civic Addresses: 20622 Langley Bypass  
Legal Description: Lot 6 Except: Firstly: Part On Plan 27727; 

Secondly: Part On Plan 28361; Thirdly: Parcel 
"B" (Right Of Way Plan 41136); Fourthly: Part 
Highway Statutory Right Of Way Plan 29755 
Fifthly: Part In Plan Bcp6882 District Lot 308 
Group 2 New Westminster District Plan 2020 

Applicant: Christopher Bozyk Architects Ltd. 
 

 



































11.57

11.52

11.54

11.57

11.48

11.57

11.43 11.43

11.5211.43

11.57

11.43 11.43

11.43

GATE POST

H

LS

LS

LS

SCALE PLOT: DRAWN:

PROJECT 
NUMBER

ISSUE DATE DESCRIPTION

Written dimensions shall have precedence over scaled dimensions. Contractors shall
verify and be responsible for all dimensions and conditions on the job; shall request
clarification of errors, discrepancies , or doubtful information contained in contract
drawings and documents. Failure to  obtain such clarification renders the Contractor
responsible for any resulting improper work and the cost of rectification .

CHRISTOPHER
BOZYK ARCHITECTS LTD
414 - 611 ALEXANDER STREET  VANCOUVER BC  V6A 1E1
PHONE (604) 251-3440 FAX (604) 251-3848

COPYRIGHT NOTICE:
All rights reserved.  All ideas, designs, drawings and reproductions either
in print or electronic format, are the property of LandSpace Design Inc, and 
are an instrument of service that may not be used,
forwarded to others, transmitted, downloaded or reproduced either in
print or electronic format, without the express written permission of the
copyright owner.

1 APR.25'24 ISSUED FOR DP

2

3

4

5

L-1

1:200

LANDSCAPE PLAN

ACTFEB14'24

LLANDSCAPE ARCHITECT

(EXISTING AND PROPOSED)

21022 - Go Auto Langley Toyota

20622 LANGLEY BYPASS, 
LANGLEY, BC

PLANT LIST
SYMBOL QTY. BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE

PROPOSED

Trees

2 Acer palmatum Japanese Maple 5cm cal / if replaced
   (reloc ex or replace)               tree form

3 Cornus florida rubra Pink Dogwood 5 cm cal. / 1.8m stnd / 
   (alt: orn small tree types)           matched

2 Styrax japonicum Japanese Snowbell 6 cm cal. / 1.8m stnd / 
   (alt: Hedge Maple, Parrotia, Etc)           matched

2 Chamaecyparis nootka Nootka Cypress 2.5m ht. / spr form

Shrubs

119 Buxus micro 'Winter Gem' Boxwood Var. #3 pot 

111 Ilex japonica Japanese Holly Var. #3 pot 

6 Rhodendron 'Elizabeth' (low red) Rhodo Var. #3 pot / early 

23 Rosa meidiland 'Meikrotal'  (red) Scarlet French Rose #3

83 Prunus lusitanica Portugize Laurel #3

26 Yucca nana 'Variegata' Dwarf Varigated Yucca #2 pot

132 Liriope spicata Lilyturf #1 pot

95 Carex glauca Sedge Var. #1 pot

Notes:
• Specifications per the Canadian Landscape Standards & Landspace Spec Notes
• Plant alternates / substitutions selected by LA at approved nursery
• New planting: one year warranty

EXISTING PLANTS (FOR REFERENCE ONLY)

Trees All Mature

1 Platanus acerifolia London Plane

2 Chamaecyparis nootka Nootka Cypress

Shrubs

- Buxus micro 'Winter Gem' Boxwood Var.

- Rhodendron  (various var's) Rhodo Var's.

- Taxus media 'Brownii' Yew

- Erica carnea (various var's) Winter Heather

- Bioswale and Riparian Areas

Note:

Existing Plants Shown Are Approx Only & Locations Are By Site Estimation

PROPOSED 
ADDITION

EXISTING BUILDING

PROPOSED 
ADDITION

PROPOSED 
ADDITION

PROPOSED 
ADDITION

3m
Landscape
SetbackPROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE

PROPERTY LINE 

PR
OP

ER
TY

 L
IN

E 

RIGHT OF W
AY PLAN # 41136

ADJACENT  BUILDING

EX. PYLON. 
SIGNAGE

MAIN ENTRANCE

Ne
w 

re
cy

cli
ng

 / 
wa

ste
 

so
tag

e 
en

clo
su

re

SE
TB

AC
K

LA
NG

LE
Y 

BY
 - 

PA
SS

NEW ACCESS
WALK

NEW DRIVE WAY

FR
ON

TA
GE

 R
OA

D

RELOCATE
EX. LIGHTS

PMT 

NE
W

 C
AR

S

EXISTING BIOSWALE

EX
IS

TI
NG

 R
IPA

RI
AN

EX
IS

TI
NG

 R
IPA

RI
AN

N

C
U

R
B

PL

VEHICLE DISPLAY
PEDESTRIAN PLAZA

EXISING YEW HEDGE

PROPOSED 
BOXWOOD HEDGE

EXISTING 
RHODODENDRON

EXISTING 
WINTER HEATHER
(w/ perennials)

EX.
LAWN

EX 
BOULDERS
(approx)

PROPOSED 
ORNAMENTAL
TREES

PROPOSED 
ORNAMENTAL
TREES

PROPOSED 
BOXWOOD

PROPOSED 
VARIGATED
ORN. YUCCA

PROPOSED 
LILY TURF
(Groundcover)

N
EW

 L
AW

N

EX. BOULDERS
(adjusted/relocated ±7'oc
  as directed)

water
chamber

PROPOSED 
ORNAMENTAL
CONIFER

wall of adacent building

walkway
gravel

EXISTING 
BOXWOOD HEDGE

EX
IS

TI
NG

DR
IV

EW
AY

N
EW

 L
AW

N

EXISTING 
RHODODENDRONPROPOSED 

EVERGREEN 
SHRUBS

EX.
LAWN

EXISTING 
RHODODENDRON

EXISTING 
WINTER HEATHER

EXISTING 
LARGE PLANE TREE

EXISTING 
BOXWOOD HEDGE

EX 
BOULDERS
(approx)

NOTE:
EXISTING LANDSCAPE
TO REMAIN EAST &
WEST OF EX DRIVEWAY

PROPOSED 
ORNAMENTAL
CONIFER

PROPOSED 
JAPANESE MAPLES (2)
(relocated or replaced)
Typical

PROPOSED 
EVERGREEN HEDGE
Typical

PROPOSED 
EVERGREEN 
GROUNDCOVER
Typical

EXISTING
CONIFERS

LS

LS

Bollards

10 - Class 2 Bicycle Spaces
(See Detail - Arch Drwg)

6 - Class 2 Bicycle Spaces
(See Detail - Arch Drwg)

NEW 
SIGN

NEW  DIRECTIONAL
SIGN

EXISTING BIOSWALE

EXISTING BIOSWALE

SRW
 PLAN BCP13389

SRW PLAN BCP13389

SW
AL

E

SW
AL

E

SEE CIVIL
FOR GRADING
PLAN

18" wide
Typ

w/RiverRock

18" wide
Typ

w/RiverRock

LSLS

LS LS LS

LS

11.39

11.39

11.47

11.34

11.31

11.37

11.72

11.55

11.36

11.13

11.03

11.01

11.06

11.13

11.20

11.31

11.37

11.40

11.79

11.45

11.35

11.28

11.29

11.19

10.78

11.17

11.40
11

.12

11.28

LB

LB11.15




